

ORDINANCE NO. ____

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSEVILLE AMENDING SECTIONS 2.16.010, 2.16.020, 2.16.030, AND ADDING SECTIONS 2.16.040, 2.16.050 AND 2.16.060 OF CHAPTER 2.16; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.18.010, 2.18.020, AND 2.18.030 AND DELETING SECTION 2.18.040 OF CHAPTER 2.18; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.20.020 AND 2.20.030 AND DELETING SECTION 2.20.040 OF CHAPTER 2.20; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.22.020 AND 2.22.030, AND DELETING SECTION 2.22.040 OF CHAPTER 2.22; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.24.010, 2.24.020, AND 2.24.030 AND DELETING SECTION 2.24.021 OF CHAPTER 2.24; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.26.010, 2.26.020, 2.26.030, AND DELETING SECTION 2.26.040 OF CHAPTER 2.26; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.28.010, 2.28.020, 2.28.030, 2.28.030 AND DELETING SECTIONS 2.28.031, 2.28.040, 2.28.050, 2.28.060, 2.28.070, 2.28.080, AND 2.28.090 OF CHAPTER 2.28; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.30.010, 2.30.020, 2.30.030 AND DELETING SECTION 2.30.040 OF CHAPTER 2.30; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.32.010, 2.32.020, AND 2.32.030, AND DELETING SECTIONS 2.32.021, 2.32.040, 2.32.050, AND 2.32.060 OF CHAPTER 2.32 OF TITLE 2 OF THE ROSEVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

THE CITY OF ROSEVILLE ORDAINS:

SECTION 1. Section 2.16.010 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

2.16.010 **Formation.** ~~Failure to attend meetings — Forfeiture of membership.~~

~~Any member of any board or commission who is appointed by the city council and who is absent without excuse for three consecutive meetings; or 25 percent of meetings in a calendar year; or three meetings in a calendar year for two consecutive years, whether regular or special, of the body of which he or she is a member, shall forfeit his or her office.~~

~~The secretary or clerk of each board or commission whose members are appointed by the city council shall certify to the city council the unexcused absence of any member for three consecutive meetings; or 25 percent of meetings in a calendar year; or three meetings in a calendar year for two consecutive years.~~

The initial appointments to the board or commission shall consist of two members appointed for four years, two members appointed for three years, two members appointed for two years, and one member appointed for one year. Each of such initial terms shall be considered as one of the two term limit.

SECTION 2. Section 2.16.020 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

2.16.020 **~~Removal.~~Membership.**

~~Except as otherwise provided by law or the charter, the members of the boards, commissions, and committees of the city serve at the pleasure of the city council, and may be removed by the council at any time with or without cause.~~

The following guidelines are hereby established for all City of Roseville boards and commissions:

A. Roseville residents who apply for an advisory board or commission position must be registered to vote, except youth members under the age of 18.

B. Individuals can only be appointed to serve on a single City of Roseville board or commission at a time.

C. Relatives (spouses, domestic partners, co-habitants, siblings, parents, and children) cannot serve on the same board or commission.

D. Current city employees are ineligible to serve on a board or commission.

SECTION 3. Section 2.16.030 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

2.16.030 ~~Membership guidelines.~~ Youth members.

~~—The following guidelines are hereby established for all City of Roseville boards and commissions:~~

~~—A. Roseville residents who apply for an advisory board or commission position must be registered to vote, except youth members under the age of 18.~~

~~—B. Individuals can only be appointed to serve on a single City of Roseville board or commission.~~

~~C. Relatives (spouses, domestic partners, co-habitants, and children) cannot serve on the same board or commission.~~

The city council may, in its discretion, appoint a high school student that is a resident of Roseville as a voting or non-voting member. Such member shall serve only during his or her enrollment in high school and for a one year term. Such member can be re-appointed for a second term.

SECTION 4. Section 2.16.040 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby added to read as follows:

2.16.040 Vacancies.

In the event of a vacancy, other than vacancies caused by expiration of the terms of members, the city council shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limits.

SECTION 5. Section 2.16.050 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby added to read as follows:

2.16.050 Attendance.

Any member of any board or commission who is appointed by the city council and who is absent without excuse for 25 percent or more of meetings in a rolling 12-month period, or more than one meeting in a rolling 12-month period if the board or commission meets quarterly, shall forfeit his or her office.

The secretary of each board or commission whose members are appointed by the city council shall transmit the absences to the city clerk.

SECTION 6. Section 2.16.060 of Chapter 2.16 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby added to read as follows:

2.16.060 **Removal.**

Except as otherwise provided by law or the charter, the members of the boards, commissions, and committees of the city serve at the pleasure of the city council, and may be removed by the council at any time with or without cause.

SECTION 7. Section 2.18.010 of Chapter 2.18 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.18

~~ROSEVILLE~~ GRANTS ADVISORY COMMISSION

2.18.010 **Established.**

There is ~~hereby~~ established the ~~Roseville~~ grants advisory commission of the city.

SECTION 8. Section 2.18.020 of Chapter 2.18 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.18.020 **~~Membership~~Composition.**

The ~~Roseville~~ grants advisory commission shall ~~be~~ consist ~~composed~~ of seven members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. No member shall serve more than two consecutive terms. ~~The initial appointments to the commission shall consist of two members.~~

~~appointed for four years, two members appointed for three years, two members appointed for two years, and one member appointed for one year. Each of such initial terms shall be considered as one of the two term limit.~~

~~In addition, the city council may annually appoint a person who is at least 13 years of age but not more than 18 years of age at the time of appointment to serve as an ex-officio, non-voting member of the commission. With the exception of term of office and voting, such member shall be subject to all of the rights, duties and privileges of other members.~~

SECTION 9. Section 2.18.030 of Chapter 2.18 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.18.030 ~~Vacancies~~Responsibilities.

~~In the event of a vacancy in the Roseville grants advisory commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of the terms of members, the city council shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.18.020.~~

A. Reviews and recommends Citizens' Benefit Fund (Chapter 4.06) and Roseville Employees Annual Charitable Hearts ("REACH") Fund (Chapter 4.07) grant application processes and policies for grants to be approved by the city council.

B. Acts as a forum for public participation in review of Citizens' Benefit Fund and REACH grant applications.

C. Annually reviews and makes recommendations on Citizens' Benefit Fund and REACH grant applications.

D. Monitors approved grants and reviews annual reports for measurable outcomes.

E. Recommends to the city council the use of the interest earned by the city on the proceeds of the sale of the Roseville Community Hospital in the award of Citizens' Benefit Fund grants.

SECTION 10. Section 2.18.040 of Chapter 2.18 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted.

~~2.18.040 — Duties.~~

~~The Roseville grants advisory commission shall review all proposals or grant applications for expenditures from the citizens' benefit fund established by Chapter 4.06 and the Roseville employees annual charitable hearts fund established by Chapter 4.07, and shall make recommendations to the city council as to such expenditures and grant applications. In addition, the Roseville grants advisory commission may host educational forums for potential grant applicants, provide information to prospective donors to the funds, and participate in organizations promoting the work of charitable funds.~~

SECTION 11. Section 2.20.020 of Chapter 2.20 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.20.020 ~~Membership~~ — Composition.

~~A.——The planning commission shall consist of seven members who shall hold no other official position with the city and who shall be appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. No member shall serve more than two consecutive terms. The planning director or a representative designated by him shall serve as recording secretary to the commission.~~

~~B.——Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of this section, the council may, in its sole discretion, appoint alternate members of the planning commission to take part in discussions and vote where the item for discussion is either a general plan amendment, specific plan adoption, or other major projects as determined by the council, and where one or more regular members of the planning commission is absent or disqualified. In that case, as many alternate members as necessary to make up a full seven member commission may be appointed who may participate as fully and to the same extent as though they were full planning commission members. Such appointment shall automatically terminate when planning commission consideration of such item ends.~~

SECTION 12. Section 2.20.030 of Chapter 2.20 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.20.030 Responsibilities~~Membership—Terms.~~

~~Members of the planning commission shall serve staggered terms of four years. No member of the planning commission shall serve more than two consecutive terms.~~ A. Makes recommendations to the city council on general plan, specific plan, zoning and other land use policy areas.

B. Reviews and makes recommendations to the city council or, where appropriate, approves entitlements for compliance with the general plan, applicable specific plans, and other policy documents.

C. Takes final action on major project permits, conditional use permits, tree permits, tentative subdivision maps, variances, and zoning interpretations.

D. Determines the adequacy and consistency with the California Environmental Quality Act of environmental documentation associated with projects acted upon by the planning commission.

E. Provides representation of the city at various conferences, before other agencies, etc.

F. Provides commission members for service on special task forces/committees, as needed.

G. Provides a forum for public involvement for the items listed above.

SECTION 13. Section 2.20.040 of Chapter 2.20 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted.

2.20.040 Filling vacancies.

~~—In the event of a vacancy in the planning commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, a person shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term. Such an~~

~~appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two-term limit established by Section 2.20.030.~~

SECTION 14. Section 2.22.020 of Chapter 2.22 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.22.020 Composition~~Membership~~.

The public utilities commission shall consist~~be composed~~ of seven members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. No member shall serve more than two consecutive terms.~~The city manager or his or her designee shall act as advisor to the public utilities commission.~~

SECTION 15. Section 2.22.030 of Chapter 2.22 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.22.030 Responsibilities~~Vacancies~~.

- A. Studies and advises the city council regarding all utilities and enterprises owned or operated by the city, including but not limited to, electrical, water, wastewater, recycled water, solid waste, and stormwater.
- B. Advises the city council regarding planning, rates, public information, and other matters relating to such enterprises.
- C. Hears citizen concerns relating to utility operation and/or rates.
- D. Conducts public meetings and public hearings for the purpose of reviewing agreements, proposed utility-related projects, and rates prior to making a recommendation to the city council.

E. Reviews California Environmental Quality Act and National Environmental Policy Act documents for public utility-related projects.

F. Advises the city council regarding the activities of joint powers agencies if the city council appoints a representative of the commission to sit as a participant on the board or commission of a joint powers agency of which the city is a member.

G. Quarterly reviews the departments' progress reports given to the commission to determine the progress of each utility.

H. Monitors new emerging technology and services, and when appropriate, makes recommendations to city council.

I. Provides a forum for public involvement for the items listed above.

~~In the event of a vacancy in the public utilities commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, the council shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limits established by Section 2.22.020.~~

SECTION 16. Section 2.22.040 of Chapter 2.22 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.22.040- Duties.**~~

~~The public utilities commission shall study and advise the city council regarding any cable television franchise and all utilities owned or operated by the city, including, but not~~

~~limited to, electrical, water, sewer, and refuse. The public utilities commission shall advise the city council regarding planning, rates, public information, and other matters relating to such enterprises, and may hear citizen complaints as to operation or rates. The public utilities commission shall advise the city council regarding the activities of such joint powers agencies as the city may be a member or which relate to said enterprises (including without limitation, the Northern California Power Agency, the Transmission Agency of Northern California, the South Placer Wastewater Authority, the Regional Water Authority and the Western Placer Waste Management Authority).~~

SECTION 17. Section 2.24.010 of Chapter 2.24 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.24

~~PUBLIC~~ TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

2.24.010 Established.

There is established a ~~public~~ transportation commission of the city. ~~which shall act as an advisory body to the city council.~~

SECTION 18. Section 2.24.020 of Chapter 2.24 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.24.020 Composition—~~Appointment—Terms.~~

The ~~public~~ transportation commission shall ~~consist~~be composed of seven members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. ~~—who are residents of the~~

~~city. Appointments shall be made by the city council for overlapping four year terms. No member of the public transportation commission shall serve more than two consecutive terms.~~

~~In addition the city council may annually appoint a high school student that is a resident of Roseville to serve as a voting member of the commission.~~

SECTION 19. Section 2.24.021 of Chapter 2.24 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.24.021- Filling vacancies.~~

~~— In the event of a vacancy in the public transportation commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, a person shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.24.020.~~

SECTION 20. Section 2.24.030 of Chapter 2.24 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.24.030 Responsibilities~~Duties.~~

A. Reviews and makes recommendations to the city council on the general plan circulation element; the bicycle master plan, pedestrian master plan, short and long range transit plan, the capital improvement project plan; specific plan circulation plans; regional transportation plans, the public transit system; bikeway, pedestrian, transit, and roadway capital improvement projects and transportation systems management.

B. Reviews and approves transportation systems management plans.

C. Provides representation of the city at various conferences and before other agencies, as needed.

D. Provides a forum for public involvement for the items listed above.

~~—The public transportation commission shall study the public transit, traffic, bikeway and pedestrian needs of the residents of the city, shall make recommendations to the city council concerning such public transportation needs of the city, and shall approve transportation systems management plans pursuant to Chapter 11.33 hereof.~~

SECTION 21. Section 2.26.010 of Chapter 2.26 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.26.010 Establishment.

There is ~~hereby~~ established a board of appeals of the city.

SECTION 22. Section 2.26.020 of Chapter 2.26 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.26.020 Composition~~Purpose~~.

~~—The board of appeals shall hear appeals of decisions of the building official pursuant to Sections 16.04.110 and 17.08.530, appeals of decisions of the fire chief pursuant to Section 16.16.050, appeals of decisions of the environmental utilities director pursuant to Section 14.20.450 and appeals of decisions of the chief of police pursuant to Section 9.45.260. Members~~

~~of the board of appeals shall also provide a pool of hearing examiners to sit on hearing panels pursuant to Sections 2.50.070 and 2.52.070 of this title.~~

The board of appeals shall consist of 10 to 15 members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. No member shall serve more than two consecutive terms.

SECTION 23. Section 2.26.030 of Chapter 2.26 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.26.030 **MembershipResponsibilities.**

~~———The board of appeals shall be composed of 10 to 15 members. They shall be appointed by the city council to staggered four-year terms. No member of the board of appeals shall serve more than two consecutive terms.~~

A. Serves as an advisory body to the city council with respect to construction, building, code enforcement, or similar matters.

B. Reviews matters as provided under the Uniform Building and Housing codes.

C. Serves as a pool of hearing examiners for the purpose of formation of each ad hoc hearing examiner panel as provided herein.

SECTION 24. Section 2.26.040 of Chapter 2.26 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.26.040~~ **~~Filing vacancies.~~**

~~———In the event of a vacancy on the board of appeals, other than vacancies caused by the expiration of terms of members, the city council shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired term.~~

~~Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.26.030.~~

SECTION 25. Section 2.28.010 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.28

~~LIBRARY~~*LIBRARY BOARD

Note

~~* For Charter provisions regarding the creation of a library advisory board, see Charter § 2.14.~~

2.28.010 Established.

There is established a library board of the city~~in and for the city a public library, under the name of "Roseville Public Library," which name may be changed by ordinance.~~

SECTION 26. Section 2.28.020 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.28.020 ~~Library board Established.~~Composition.

~~There is established a library board in the city.~~ The library board shall consist of five members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms. No member shall serve more than two consecutive terms.

SECTION 27. Section 2.28.030 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.28.030 ~~Library board Appointment Terms.~~ Responsibilities.

~~———— A. ——— The library board shall consist of five members appointed by the city council for overlapping four year terms. whose terms shall be four years each. No member of the library board shall serve more than two consecutive terms.~~

~~———— B. ——— The city council may, in its discretion, appoint a high school student that is a resident of Roseville as a voting member of the library board. Such member shall serve only during his or her enrollment in high school and for a one year term. Such member can be reappointed for a second term.~~

A. Participates in strategic and long-range planning for the city library system.

B. Serves as community liaisons/advocates for library programs and services.

C. Reviews policies and procedures as presented by city library staff.

D. Represents the library at city-sponsored functions.

E. Advises city council on important library efforts.

SECTION 28. Section 2.28.031 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.28.031 Filing vacancies.~~

~~———— In the event of a vacancy in the library board, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, a personal shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.28.030.~~

SECTION 29. Section 2.28.040 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.28.040 — Library board — Powers and duties.**~~

~~The library board shall have the duty of recommending to the city manager and to the city council such action as to the library board appears necessary, proper or advisable for the proper administration of the city library system.~~

SECTION 30. Section 2.28.050 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.28.050 — Library board — Meetings — Quorum.**~~

~~— The library board shall meet at least once every four months at such time and place as they may determine. Special meetings may be called at any time by three members by written notice given pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act. A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.~~

SECTION 31. Section 2.28.060 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal

Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.28.060 — Library board — Chair.**~~

~~— The library board shall appoint one of its members chair, who shall serve for one year and until his or her successor is appointed; and in his or her absence, the board shall select a chair pro tempore.~~

SECTION 32. Section 2.28.070 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.28.070 — Library board — Record of proceedings.~~

~~— The library board shall cause a proper record of its proceedings to be kept.~~

SECTION 33. Section 2.28.080 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.28.080 — Lending books to other counties and municipalities.~~

~~— The city and the legislative bodies of neighboring municipalities or the board of supervisors of the county may contract for lending the books of the public library to residents of the county, or neighboring municipalities, upon a reasonable compensation to be paid by the county or neighboring municipalities.~~

SECTION 34. Section 2.28.090 of Chapter 2.28 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.28.090 — Title of property vested in city.~~

~~— The title to all property acquired for the purpose of the public library, when not inconsistent with the terms of its acquisition or otherwise designated, shall vest in the city and, in the name of the city, may be sued for and defended by action at law or otherwise.~~

SECTION 35. Section 2.30.010 of Chapter 2.30 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.30

~~ROSEVILLE~~ SENIOR COMMISSION

2.30.010 Established.

There is established a ~~Roseville~~ senior commission of the city.~~which shall act as an advisory body to the city council.~~

SECTION 36. Section 2.30.020 of Chapter 2.30 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.30.020 Composition—~~Appointment—Terms.~~

The ~~Roseville~~ senior commission shall consist~~be composed~~ of seven members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms.~~who are residents of the city. Appointments shall be made by the city council for overlapping four-year terms.~~ No member ~~of the Roseville senior commission~~ shall serve more than two consecutive terms.

SECTION 37. Section 2.30.030 of Chapter 2.30 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.30.030 Responsibilities~~Duties.~~

A. Advises the city council and/or involved city departments/committees on all matters affecting seniors in Roseville and makes recommendations on any senior program proposal to be considered by the city council.

B. Reviews the needs of seniors in Roseville and develops a set of comprehensive goals and objectives for effectively meeting those needs.

C. Monitors the various programs and services made available to seniors by both public and private agencies in Roseville to advocate efficient delivery of those services.

D. Communicates with Area 4 on Aging, Seniors First and other local, county, state or federal agencies and commissions serving seniors, and assists, if requested, in the preparation, implementation and review of any plan or program designed to serve seniors.

~~———The Roseville senior commission shall study issues and concerns relative to older adults such as leisure programming, public facilities, housing, transportation, nutrition, health care, and volunteer services; and shall make recommendations to the city council for improving the quality of life of its older citizens. The commission shall also provide representation to other agencies involved in the aging network.~~

SECTION 38. Section 2.30.040 of Chapter 2.30 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~2.30.040 ———Filling vacancies.~~

~~———In the event of a vacancy in the Roseville senior commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, a person shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.30.020.~~

SECTION 39. Section 2.32.010 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.32

PARKS AND RECREATION~~*~~ COMMISSION

Note

~~* For Charter provisions regarding the creation of boards advisory to the council and manager with respect to specific municipal functions, see Charter § 2.14.~~

2.32.010 ~~Parks and recreation commission~~ Established.

There is established a parks and recreation commission ~~of~~in the city.

SECTION 40. Section 2.32.020 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.32.020 Composition ~~Parks and recreation commission~~ Appointment Terms.

~~A.~~ The parks and recreation commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the city council for overlapping four-year terms., ~~whose terms shall be four years.~~

~~B.~~ No member ~~of the parks and recreation commission~~ shall serve more than two consecutive terms.

~~C.~~ The city council may, in its discretion, appoint a high school student that is a resident of Roseville as a voting member of the parks and recreation commission. Such member

~~shall serve only during his or her enrollment in high school and for a one year term. Such member can be reappointed for a second term.~~

SECTION 41. Section 2.32.021 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.32.021 Filling vacancies.**~~

~~— In the event of a vacancy in the parks and recreation commission, other than vacancies caused by expiration of terms of members, a person shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term. Such an appointment to fill an unexpired term shall not be considered as one of the two term limit established by Section 2.32.020.~~

SECTION 42. Section 2.32.030 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.32.030 Parks and recreation commission—Powers and dutiesResponsibilities.

Reviews and makes recommendations on park projects, department operations, recreation programs, events and related issues.

~~— The parks and recreation commission shall have the duty of recommending to the city manager and to the city council such action as to the parks and recreation commission appears necessary, proper or advisable for the proper administration of the city parks and recreation programs.~~

SECTION 43. Section 2.32.040 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.32.040 — Parks and recreation commission — Chairman and secretary — Quorum.**~~

~~— The parks and recreation commission shall appoint one of its members as chairman and one as secretary. A majority of the parks and recreation commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business.~~

SECTION 44. Section 2.32.050 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.32.050 — Parks and recreation commission — Rules established — Records.**~~

~~— The parks and recreation commission shall establish rules for its proceedings and shall cause a full and complete record of its proceedings to be kept.~~

SECTION 45. Section 2.32.060 of Chapter 2.32 of Title 2 of the Roseville Municipal Code is hereby deleted:

~~**2.32.060 — Parks and recreation commission — City employees to cooperate.**~~

~~— All officers and employees of the city shall cooperate with the parks and recreation commission to the fullest extent to the end that the city parks and playgrounds may be administered efficiently and economically.~~

SECTION 46. This ordinance shall be effective at the expiration of thirty (30) days from the date of adoption.

SECTION 47. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause this ordinance to be published in full at least once within fourteen (14) days after it is adopted in a newspaper of general

circulation in the City, or shall within fourteen (14) days after its adoption cause this ordinance to be posted in full in at least three (3) public places in the City and enter in the Ordinance Book a certificate stating the time and place of said publication by posting.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Roseville this ____ day of _____, 20__, by the following vote on roll call:

AYES COUNCILMEMBERS:

NOES COUNCILMEMBERS:

ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS:

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Clerk